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1871
1872
1947
1949

Ministry of Education established

1950

Law for the Protection of Cultural Properties enacted; Protection of Cultural Properties Committee established (external bureau of the Ministry of
Education, Culture, Sports Science and Technology)

1956
1959
1961
1964

Science and Technology Agency established (external bureau of the Prime Minister'’s Office)

1968

Agency for Cultural Affairs established (merging of the Protection of Cultural Properties Committee and the Ministry of Education Cultural Affairs
Bureau)

1972
1984
1995
1996
1998
2000

Sapporo Olympics held

Promulgation of the school system
The Basic Act on Education, School Education Law, enacted
Scientific Technical Administration Committee established

Council for Science and Technology Policy established
Sports Promotion Law enacted
Tokyo Olympics held

National Council on Education Reform established (to 1987)
Science and Technology Basic Law enacted
First Science and Technology Basic Plan formulated (to FY2000)
Nagano Olympics held
Basic Plan for the Promotion of Sports formulated (to FY2011)

Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology

Organization of the Ministry of
Education, Culture, Sports,
Science and Technology
(MEXT)
(as of October 2020)

MEXT Staff
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Division

Scientific Research Aid Division

Environment and Energy Division

National Institute of Science
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Properties Division
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Food Culture Division
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2001

MEXT established (merging of the Ministry of Education, Science Sports and Culture and the Science and Technology Agency as a result of the
reorganization of central government ministries and agencies)
Fundamental Law for the Promotion of Culture and the Arts enacted
Second Science and Technology Basic Plan formulated (to FY2005)

2002
2006
2007
2008

First Basic Policy on the Promotion of Culture and the Arts formulated (to FY2006)
Five-day week system implemented for schools
Third Science and Technology Basic Plan formulated (to FY2010)
Revision of the Basic Act on Education enacted
Second Basic Policy on the Promotion of Culture and the Arts formulated (to FY2010)
First Basic Plan for the Promotion of Education formulated (to FY2012)
Third Basic Policy on the Promotion of Culture and the Arts formulated (to FY2015)

2011

Fourth Science and Technology Basic Plan formulated (to FY2015)
Basic Act on Sport enacted

2012
2013
2015
2016
2017
2018

First Sport Basic Plan formulated (to FY2016)
Second Basic Plan for the Promotion of Education formulated (to FY2017)
Fourth Basic Policy on the Promotion of Culture and the Arts formulated (to FY2020)
Japan Sports Agency established (external bureau of the Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology)
Fifth Science and Technology Basic Plan formulated (to FY2020)
Second Sport Basic Plan formulated (to FY2021)
Third Basic Plan for the Promotion of Education formulated (to FY2022)
First Basic Plan on the Promotion of Culture and the Arts formulated (to FY2022)
Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology
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EDUCATION
Promoting Educational Reform

Education
Policy Bureau
Promoting the entirety of
education policy comprehen
sively in a cross-sectoral manner
to develop an environment to
enable people to learn as
needed and live a fruitful life
In order to realize the concept of lifelong
learning prescribed in the Basic Act on
Education, MEXT plans and designs basic
education policy based on comprehensive and
objective evidence, and promotes education
responding to globalization of society, lifelong
learning, learning in local communities and
learning to live together from the perspective of
fostering personnel, developing an environment
and offering support for businesses.

The Third Basic Plan for the Promotion of Education was formulated
(Cabinet decision in June 2018) based on the Basic Act on Education.
MEXT promotes education policy, focused on maximizing possibilities
and chances for individuals, toward the era of the 100-year lifetime and
Society 5.0 (super smart society). The ministry will promote educational
reform in a timely fashion, while promptly ascertaining changes in the
educational environment in Japan, including an aging and shrinking
population, rapid technological innovation, further globalization and
informatization.
It is indispensable to promote policy making based on comprehensive
and objective evidence (evidence-based policy making: EBPM) in order
to effectively and surely implement education policy. In addition to core
statistical surveys, such as the School Basic Survey and the Social
Education Survey, MEXT conducts the National Assessment of Academic
Ability and surveys concerning education in foreign countries.

Fostering Specialized Human Resources Who
Support Education
Strengthened efforts to foster specialists who support education are
indispensable for surely implementing education policy.
The enhancement of school education largely depends on the quality
and abilities of teachers, who directly play the central role, and therefore,
improving teachers' quality and abilities is a significant policy issue for
enhancing education for children. MEXT will steadily reform the fostering,
recruiting and training of teachers in an integrated manner so that
teachers can gain professional and practical leadership. The ministry
reviews means of fostering teachers in response to newly arising
educational problems, examines measures to secure excellent personnel,
further enhances the content of training for teachers, trains managerial
personnel, and improves professional graduate schools for teacher
education, thereby supporting vocational development of teachers
throughout their careers.
Additionally, MEXT integrally promotes training and development of
social education supervisors and other personnel, as well as librarian
teachers and school librarians. In this manner, the ministry strives to
comprehensively foster specialized human resources who support
education

Policy Division
Analytical Research Planning Division
Educational Human Resources Policy Division
International Education Division
Lifelong Learning Promotion Division
Community Learning Promotion Division
Gender Equality, Cohesive Society Learning and Safety Division

Training at the National Institute for School Teachers and Staff Development

Promoting Education Responding to
Globalization of Society
In order to achieve sustainable growth and development in the current
society where globalization is accelerating, it is indispensable to develop
the educational environment and promote human resources development
responding to such moves.
MEXT has been promoting international exchange by offering support
for high school students' overseas education and has been taking
measures to provide Japanese children living overseas with educational
opportunities equivalent to those at schools in Japan by dispatching
teachers to overseas Japanese schools, providing textbooks free of
charge, and enhancing the ICT environment, including the preparation of
one ICT terminal per student and the development of peripherals. With
regard to children of foreign nationals, whose numbers are expected to
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further increase in Japan, MEXT endeavors to ascertain the situation and
encourage their attendance in schools and develop a special guidance
system to improve education for children and students requiring
Japanese language instruction.
Through these initiatives, MEXT will support children's learning in
accordance with their diverse needs, while responding to accelerating
globalization.

Promoting Lifelong Learning
In the era of the 100-year lifetime, it will become more and more
important to cultivate people's abilities and skills for working as
professionals throughout life or otherwise promote lifelong learning
through school education and social education.
In addition to facilitating enrollment in the Open University of Japan and
promoting education at specialized training colleges, MEXT promotes
related measures systematically, including recurrent education at
universities and career education and vocational education from the
stage of elementary and secondary education, with the aim of achieving
a society where anyone can learn anywhere at any time.
MEXT also designs and operates a mechanism to properly evaluate
achievements in learning such as through encouraging people to work
towards private certification examinations and organizing Upper
Secondary School Equivalency Examination, and has been endeavoring
to develop infrastructure to enable people to participate in high-quality
learning activities as many times as they want throughout life, while
seeking collaboration with various lifelong learning-related measures of
other ministries and agencies.

Promoting Learning in Local Communities
In order to sustain the vitality of society amid depopulation, it is essential
to enrich individuals' lives and strongly promote learning in local
communities for solving local issues and vitalizing communities in
collaboration with school education and home education.
MEXT promotes School-Community Partnerships by implementation
of Community School (School Management Council System) to utilize the
power of local communities in school management, and promotion of
"Community Cooperation Activities for Learning and Education" through
involving the entire community in fostering children, who are the torch
bearers of our future, while aiming to vitalize respective communities.
These activities, in collaboration and cooperation between schools and
communities, include community development through education, local
studies, After-school Classes for Children, and learning support for junior
and senior high school students (Chiiki Mirai Juku: community-based
learning support). At the same time, the ministry develops community
learning sites, such as community learning centers and libraries.
MEXT promotes initiatives to support home education depending on
the circumstances of respective communities with the aim of assisting
children's sound development and helping parents provide home
education without worry, and also promotes the national "Early to Bed,
Early to Rise, and Don't
Forget Your Breakfast"
campaign to improve
children's daily rhythms as
a society-wide initiative.
MEXT promotes various
experience-based learning
activities including interna
tional exchanges to foster
richness in humanity and a
spirit of cooperativeness
that are needed to survive
in today's society. In
addition, the "National In
stitution for Youth Educa
tion," which has 28 youth
education facilities nation
wide, provides experiencebased learning activities
and
supports
private
entities engaged in youth
education.

Based on the Fourth Basic Plan to Promote Children's Reading
(Cabinet decision in April 2018), the ministry endeavors to help children
build the habit of reading and raise their interest in books, in accordance
with their developmental stages from infants and preschoolers to
elementary school children, junior high school students and senior high
school students. MEXT also examines ways to help students develop the
required sovereign power and promotes voter education.

Promoting “Learning to Live Together”
Developing an environment for learning as the basis of people's social
participation and activities is necessary for enabling all people to respect
and support each other, participate in society with confidence and pride,
and enjoy a safe, peaceful and fruitful life, irrespective of gender or
whether having any disabilities or not.
MEXT comprehensively supports and promotes “learning to live
together”,such as increasing opportunities for learning activities for
creating gender-equal society under the Basic Act for Gender-Equal
Society and the government's Basic Plan for Gender Equality based
thereon, and lifelong learning of persons with disabilities under the
Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, etc.
Additionally, the ministry aims to create a safe and peaceful inclusive
society through promoting high-quality school safety measures against
traffic accidents of children on their way to and from school, natural
disasters and cases involving suspicious persons, in collaboration with
local communities. Specifically, the ministry strives to develop communitybased networks to protect children's safety and provide safety education
to children so that they acquire the quality and abilities to act independently
to ensure their own safety and to also contribute to the safety of local
communities. The ministry also takes countermeasures against harmful
environments for juveniles such as for preventing damage by online
crimes, and further improves consumer education toward the lowering of
the age of adulthood in 2022.

Children cooperatively creating a local disaster prevention map (Kochi Prefectural Board of
Education)

Children's Reading Day poster

Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology
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Elementary
and Secondary
Education Bureau
Planning educational enhance
ments from preschools through
elementary, lower and upper
secondary schools or equivalent
schools to foster the world's top
level academic ability and nor
mative consciousness
MEXT develops education to nurture in all
children competencies for living, focused on
the overall balance among solid academic
ability, richness in mind and a healthy body, and
promotes
fostering
of
globally-minded
individuals who will lead society in the future.
MEXT also works to maintain and enhance the
national educational level by improving
teachers' quality and constructing the
necessary teaching frameworks for educators.

Policy Division
Financial Affairs Division
School Curriculum Division
Student Affairs Division
Early Childhood Education Division
Special Needs Education Division
Media, Information and Foreign Language Education Division
Textbook Division
Health Education and Shokuiku Division
Upper Secondary School Division
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Developing "Competencies for Living
(Ikiru Chikara)"
MEXT established the National Curriculum Standards as a standard for
formulation of school curriculums to ensure a certain level of education
throughout the country.
Along with the rapid progress of artificial intelligence (AI) and
globalization,etc., social changes are accelerating and becoming more
and more difficult to predict and increasingly complicated. In order to
surely develop the competencies of children necessary for creating their
future under such circumstances, MEXT revised the National Curriculum
Standards for kindergartens and elementary and lower secondary
schools in March 2017 and for upper secondary schools in March 2018.
These new National Curriculum Standards have been being implemented
sequentially, with those for kindergartens implemented in FY2018, those
for elementary schools in FY2020, those for lower secondary schools in
FY2021, and those for upper secondary schools in gradual implementa
tion.
Also, with regard to the National Curriculum Standards for special
needs schools, MEXT revised those for kindergarten, elementary, and
lower secondary departments in April 2017, and those for upper
secondary departments in February 2019. These new National Curriculum
Standards have been being implemented sequentially, with those for
kindergarten departments implemented in FY2018, those for elementary
departments in FY2020, those for lower secondary departments in
FY2021, and those for upper secondary departments in gradual imple
mentation.
From now on, schools are required to foster children's development in
a manner that each child can recognize his/her own good points and
possibilities and respect all others as valued members of society, and will
grow up to be an active player in creating a sustainable society, while
overcoming various social changes in cooperation with diverse people
and exploring his/her own rich life. Therefore, the new National Curriculum
Standards aim to realize a "curriculum open to society" to foster children's
competencies jointly with society, while sharing the goal of creating a
better society through better school education. MEXT has been
endeavoring to surely foster competencies that will be required in the
future through lesson improvement from the perspective of proactive,
interactive and authentic learning (so-called active learning) and
curriculum management. MEXT aims to ensure that children will grow to
be members of society who can utilize what they learned at school in
actual life in society by fostering three types of strengths, namely,
"knowledge and skills" for living and working in real society, "abilities to
think, make judge and express themselves" for responding to
unprecedented circumstances, and "motivation to learn, and humanity."
for utilizing what one learned in life and society, in a well-balanced manner.

Constructing Necessary Teaching Frameworks
for Educators
Every Japanese citizen is guaranteed an equal opportunity to receive
compulsory education. In order to maintain standard compulsory
education, the law stipulates important factors within the school
educational environment including the number of students per class and
teacher placement. Moreover, as elementary, lower and upper secondary
public school teachers are regarded as local public employees, the
government shoulders one-third of school teachers' salaries based on
the Compulsory Education System Funded by Tax Revenues.
Through this system, MEXT promotes the reform and enhancement of
teacher training systems for school education including compulsory
education, while comprehensively assessing the efficacy of its policies
with a diversity of purposes and means of education in mind.
In addition, there are various problems that teachers have difficulty in
dealing with on their own in today's schools, as the environment
surrounding children has become more complicated and diverse, and the
social demand for improving the quality of school education has been
increasing. Therefore, based on the "Team Gakkou (School as a Team)"
idea, MEXT appoints diverse personnel from outside, in addition to
teachers already placed in each school, and establishes organizations
where the teachers and other personnel share a wide variety of work,
aiming to improve the educational function of school and to realize
education that

corresponds to the needs of each child.

● Strictly prohibiting physical punishment
The School Education Law strictly prohibits corporal punishment.
MEXT works to spread thorough awareness of prohibiting corporal
punishment by carrying out fact finding surveys on corporal punishment
and to highlight the differences between discipline and corporal
punishment using specific case studies.
● Developing and promoting of career education
MEXT promotes career education to foster necessary skills for children
to lead independent lives. Knowledge of entrepreneurial experience and
reviving regional communities have come to be regarded as important
perspectives.

Promoting Special Needs Education
Special needs education for students with disabilities aims to fully
develop students' capabilities, independence and social participation in
consideration of the educational needs of every individual. In order to build
the inclusive education system as proposed by the UN Convention on the
Rights of Persons with Disabilities, MEXT promotes special needs
education by providing students with appropriate guidance, educational
materials, assistive devices, and necessary support in diverse places
including classes for special needs education, special support services in
resource rooms and regular classes at regular elementary and lower
secondary schools, as well as classes at schools for special needs
education, according to every individual's specific disabilities.

Work Style Reform of Schools

Nowadays, the environment surrounding schools has become
increasingly complex and diverse, and roles expected for schools are
expanding: for example, facing the issue of child poverty or increasing
requests from parents. Teachers are also required to improve the quality
of education by reforming classes, and to deal with various educational
issues. Against this background, MEXT promotes the Work Style Reform
of schools to reduce teachers' long working hours and to have them
secure time to come face-to-face with children by the following measures:
thorough efforts to ensure proper sharing and assigning of work of
schools and teachers and appropriate management of duty hours, and
developing the environment necessary for each measures.

Tuition Support for Children and Students
MEXT provides financial support to reduce educational costs so that all
children and students can securely receive an education regardless of
their families' financial situations. These financial supports include school
aid to lower-income households at the elementary and middle school
stage, the High School Tuition Support Fund System that covers tuition
fees, and the High School Supplemental Scholarship System for lowerincome households that does not require repayment and covers other
related expenses.

Children passing a baton in a relay race

Dealing with Undesirable Behavior such as Bullying, Prohibiting
Corporal Punishment, and Promoting Career Education
● Dealing with undesirable behavior
MEXT encourages the early detection of and response to undesirable
behavior such as bullying by promoting moral education, sufficient
hands-on experience activities, preventive measures, counseling
systems, and collaboration between related organizations.

Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology
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Developing Strength to Survive Informationoriented Society and Globalized Society
● Promoting informatization of education – for Achieving the GIGA
School Initiative –
The utilization of ICT has become normal in all aspects of social life. For
children who will live in the era of Society 5.0, ICT terminals such as
smartphones, tablets, and PCs are must-have items in the same manner
as pencils and notebooks. Establishment of an ICT environment that
secures one ICT terminal per student is now considered to be the basic
standard for schools in the Reiwa era.
Under the GIGA School Initiative, MEXT has been developing the ICT
environment at schools, beginning with the preparation of one ICT
terminal per student at the compulsory education stage with the aim of
achieving optimal personalized learning for each child and cooperative
learning among multiple children through enhancing education fully
utilizing ICT.
Additionally, MEXT endeavors to make comprehensive development
integrating not only hardware but also software and human resources, by
offering support for improving teachers' ability to use ICT in teaching,
promoting the cultivation of children's information literacy and the use of
ICT in course instruction, considering means to effectively utilize
advanced technologies and education data, promoting dissemination of
digital textbooks for learners, and facilitating utilization of external experts
in developing and utilizing the ICT environment.
● Nurturing globally-minded individuals
With the advance of globalization, it is necessary to nurture globallyminded individuals who excel in communication skills, subjectivity and
understanding towards different cultures, from early stages of elementary
schools as well as lower and upper secondary schools.
The new National Curriculum Standards for elementary schools came
to be implemented in full in FY2020, and foreign language activities were
commenced for students in the third-grade or higher and foreign
language classes were commenced for students in the fifth-grade or
higher. From elementary to lower and upper secondary schools, students
learn to hear, read, speak and write in English and cultivate the ability to
mutually exchange information and views so that they will develop an
attitude to continue learning foreign languages and subjectively
communicate with others throughout their lives. MEXT has been offering
various support to schools and boards of education for improving the
teaching ability of teachers in charge of English education and has been
promoting the utilization of ICT and assistant language teachers (ALTs).
Furthermore, in addition to the Super Global High School Project to
develop curricula that can respond to progressing globalization, MEXT
newly launched in FY2019 a project to support development of the World
Wide Learning (WWL) Consortium, which aims to realize more advanced
learning for high school students and nurture globally-minded individuals
with innovative ideas who can work globally in the future, and a project to
nurture glocal leaders who support local communities with a global point
of view, in collaboration with respective local communities, for the
purpose of achieving the goal of "Society 5.0."

Promoting Early Childhood Education
Early childhood is a crucial period that builds the base for lifelong
character formation. As such, it is important that every young child is
provided with quality preschool education. MEXT strives to (i) mitigating
the economic burden for users with free early childhood education; (ii)
upgrade educational content for kindergartens by implementing the
National Curriculum Standard for Kindergartens revised in March 2017;
(iii) enhance the quality of early childhood education through running
projects for constructing a childhood education promotion system for
local governments; and (iv) accept children who are waiting for the
admission to day-care centers at kindergartens based on the Plan for
Raising Children with Peace of Mind.
In addition, under the Comprehensive Support System for Children
and Child-rearing that started in April 2015, early childhood education
and care, as well as childcare support by the community, are to be
provided comprehensively to all children and households rearing children.
Relevant ministries and agencies are collaborating with each other to
establish common benefits (facility-type benefit) system via kindergartens,
day-care centers, and centers for early childhood education and care,
and to improve the center for early childhood education and care system
and enhance child-rearing support in accordance with the circumstances
of respective communities (Local Children/child-rearing Support Service).
Furthermore, the Act Partially Amending the Children and Child Rearing
Support Act (Act No. 7 of 2019) came into effect in October 2019 and
kindergartens, day-care centers and centers for early childhood education
and care were made free for all children aged 3 to 5.

Enhancing School Textbooks
School textbooks play an important role as the main learning material
of subjects used in classes at school to advance children's learning.
Textbooks do a great deal to ensure a child's equal opportunity to receive
an education. In order to maintain and improve national education
standards, they must be used in elementary, lower and upper secondary
schools, and special needs schools, etc.
Japan has introduced the textbook authorization system. All textbooks
written and edited by private publishers are authorized in accordance
with the National Curriculum Standards and Textbook Authorization
Standards. Boards of education, etc. then decide which textbooks to
adopt from among authorized textbooks. Moreover, Japan has adopted
free supply of textbooks which is implemented to further disseminate free
compulsory education, and has promoted special course textbooks such
as enlarged textbooks so that students with disabilities can learn
sufficiently.
Through the amendment of the system in FY2018, it was made
possible to use digital textbooks as needed, while paper textbooks
remain to be used mainly. MEXT will continue its efforts to further enhance
the learning of all students and improve accessibility to the content of
textbooks through the utilization of digital textbooks.

Free Textbook System
The system to provide school textbooks for compulsory education free of charge.
It aims to realize the spirit of free compulsory education stipulated in Article 26 of the
Constitution of Japan. It has been implemented for over 50 years since 1963, and
has widely taken root in Japan. The system aims to deepen the national awareness
of students who represent the next generation and reduces the educational
expenses of households. The subjects of this system are school textbooks for all
subjects in compulsory education. For FY2019, a budget of around 44.8 billion yen
has been allocated for this system, and a total of around 100 million textbooks were
distributed to about 9.71 million students.
From YouTube MEXT channel series, "Foreign Language Education will Change in this Manner!"
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Promoting a Flexible Education System Suitable
for a New Era

Children eating school lunch (Shimanto City, Kochi)

● Providing learning opportunities at evening classes for lower secondary
schools
Evening classes for lower secondary schools are expected to play
various roles in substantially guaranteeing opportunities to receive
compulsory education for individuals over school age who have not
completed compulsory education, individuals who have graduated from
lower secondary schools without receiving sufficient education due to
various circumstances such as school non-attendance, and individuals of
foreign nationalities who could not receive sufficient compulsory
education in their home countries or in Japan.
MEXT set up a policy aiming to establish at least one lower secondary
school offering evening classes in each prefecture and in each designated
city, depending on its population size and city function, and has been
encouraging prefectures and designated cities to consider establishment
through support measures. At the same time, MEXT has been
endeavoring to develop an environment to ease entry and enrolled in
evening classes.

Enriching School Health Education
In order to realize the sound growth of children both in body and in
mind, it is essential to advance measures concerning school health, food
education, and school lunches.
In order to correspond to children's increasingly diverse and
complicated health issues including allergies and mental health and to
ensure that children can manage and maintain good health by themselves
throughout life, MEXT promotes health education covering problems of
smoking and drinking habits and substance abuse, as well as sex
education. The ministry promotes the establishment of School Health
Committees that facilitate children's good health in collaboration among
schools, families and local professional organizations, etc., or otherwise
promotes the organization of school health systems in respective schools.
The ministry also seeks collaboration with local health and medical
institutions in order to promote efforts integrally with respective
communities.
Furthermore, MEXT strives to promote food education headed by diet
and nutrition teachers, whose system was commenced in FY2005, to
equip children with correct knowledge on food and diet and the ability to
make judgment independently, and to help them establish desirable
eating habits, so that they can have a sound diet throughout their life. The
ministry also promotes efforts to utilize locally produced ingredients and
serve local cuisine and traditional dishes for school lunches.

School lunches
School lunches are provided by establishers of compulsory
education institutions. By providing balanced meals, they aim to
promote children's good health and have children learn about diet.
School lunches are utilized as living education materials.
Children learn the significance of diet and mental and physical
good health, acquire the ability to select an appropriate diet, develop
a sense of gratitude and socializing skills and understand food
culture through having school lunches.

Reform of Upper Secondary School Education
Upper secondary schools have a variety of students with diverse
motivations, plans after graduation, and learning experience, etc. They
are expected to provide distinctive and attractive education in response
to the learning needs of such students. MEXT encourages upper
secondary schools to make themselves distinctive and attractive so that
they can motivate diverse students on an individual basis to learn and
develop their capabilities to the fullest possible extent. The ministry
facilitates schools' efforts for realizing advanced and diverse learning in
collaboration with local communities and higher education institutions,
conducting Learning Assessment for upper secondary school students,
and promoting vocational education in the fields of agriculture, industry
and commerce.

Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology
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Improving Undergraduate and Graduate Schools

Higher Education
Bureau
Planning promotion of higher
education focusing on un
der
graduate and graduate schools
MEXT pursues various policies as follows to
promote higher education: assures the quality
of education through approval of the
establishment of universities, junior colleges,
and colleges of technology and evaluations;
supports university education reform; and
fosters high-level professionals. At the same
time, MEXT performs administration for the
selection of students' admission, student
support, internationalization of universities and
foreign student exchanges, and the invigoration
of incorporated national universities. In addition,
the ministry promotes private schools through
tax incentives, subsidies and administrative
guidance and advice.

Policy Division
University Promotion Division

● Promoting measures for future university education
Japan is now confronted with various domestic issues including
declining birthrates and an increasingly aging society. At the same time,
the nation must also grapple with the drastic societal changes such as
globalization and a coming knowledge-based society. Against this
backdrop, universities play an extremely important and diverse role for
the nation's well-being and socio-economic development through
nurturing well-educated human resources with high level of expertise and
solving social problems through various studies.
Universities also take a role as the center for the revitalization of local
communities, and are expected to actively lead society by creation and
dissemination of new knowledge and values.
In order to respond to the nation's needs, MEXT certainly implements
university reform to bring up Japanese university education to the highest
international standards, considering the proposals and deliberations of
the Council for the Implementation of Education Rebuilding and the
Central Council for Education.
● Quality assurance of university education
As universities aim to foster the diverse knowledge needed to function
in the 21st century, the quality of undergraduate education must first be
reformed to foster students' subjective thinking and learning. The Central
Council for Education has also proposed the need for qualitative changes
in university education. In order to ensure the quality of university
education from admission to graduation, the council has developed and
introduced three integrated policies (diploma, curriculum, and admission
policies) in addition to proposing a reform in a system of certified
evaluation and accreditation.
Moreover, the final report of the Council for Reform on the System of
Articulation of High School and University has addressed specific
measures for facilitating a smooth transition from high school to university
by making integrated changes to high school and university education as
well as to selection of university entrants.
Working against this backdrop, MEXT is examining further measures
and working to reform the current system and regulations, etc. At the
same time, the ministry is working to secure the budget needed to
guarantee and enhance the quality of university education through
various initiatives, including reforming the smooth transition from high
school to university.
● Enhancing graduate education
The Central Council for Education suggests that graduate schools
should play a central role in nurturing "knowledge professionals" who will
lead society in order to respond to expected social changes in the future.
Based on this suggestion, MEXT has been striving to achieve
constitutional improvement of university education through creating and
cross-sectionally expanding outcomes of the WISE Program (Doctoral
Program for World-leading Innovative & Smart Education), which aims to
foster excellent doctors who lead all sectors and to establish bases for
human resources development and personnel exchanges and for
sustainable development of new joint research projects.

Technical Education Division
Medical Education Division
Student Support and Exchange Division
National University Corporation Support Division
Private Education Institution Department
Private Education Institution Administration Division
Practical training in the WISE Program

Private Education Institution Aid Division
Private Education Institution Management Division
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● Supporting educational reform of national, public and private
universities
In order to solve policy issues in need of swift correspondence by
higher educational institutions such as strengthening the quality and
functions of university education, MEXT strives to advance the
development of innovative and pioneering educational research programs
along with supporting measures to establish education research bases in
a competitive environment whether for national, public, or private schools.

● National university reform dealing with society's demands
Since the incorporation of national universities in April 2004, each
national university corporation has endeavored to strengthen functions
individually taking advantage of their own founding principles and
characteristics. Amid today's rapid socioeconomic changes, national
universities are expected to actively contribute to further advance Japan's
growth and development.
MEXT establishes operational goals to be achieved by national
university corporations once every six years, and national university
corporations are required to make plans to achieve those goals,
respectively. For the period for the third medium-term objectives, which
started in FY2016, MEXT advocates the need for each national university
corporation to promote reform by making the most of their respective
strengths and characteristics in order to maintain competitiveness
sustainably and create high added value. In FY2017, the ministry
launched a Designated National University Corporation System aiming to
achieve world-leading education and research activities. In addition,
through a system reform, the ministry has made it possible for national
university corporations to secure funds in various ways by allowing them
to lend land, etc. in FY2017 and easing regulations on long-term
borrowings and bond issuance in FY2020, thereby encouraging their
voluntary and independent operations. MEXT will proceed with the reform
so that respective national universities may respond to society's demands
utilizing past initiatives for enhancing their functions.
● Fostering high-level professionals, etc. and technicians
Universities train advanced professionals with highly specialized
knowledge and skills based on the needs of various industries. In the
medical-related field, for example, MEXT works to foster outstanding
medical doctors who aspire to work in regional medical care and
outstanding medical researchers who work on creating future medicine,
who are able to respond to society's rapid medical needs.
Professional graduate schools assume a leadership role in various
areas of society, providing graduate courses (professional degrees) which
specialize in fostering highly-specialized professionals who will be active
internationally. These schools have been established to train professionals
in the fields of law (law schools), education (professional graduate schools
for teacher education), accounting, business administration, management
of technology (MOT) and public policy.
Professional and vocational universities, professional and vocational
junior colleges, and professional and vocational courses aim to foster
specialized professionals who are industry-ready with practical skills in
specialized fields and have the ability to create new goods and services.
As of April 2020, nine professional and vocational universities and two
professional and vocational junior colleges were opened.
Colleges of technology are institutions of higher education which
provide specialized education with an emphasis on experimentation and
practical training over a period of five years for students who have
completed lower secondary school education. These colleges foster
practical and creative technicians who represent the backbone of
manufacturing.

Promoting Private Schools
Japan's private schools carry out unique educational and research
activities in the spirit of their founding and play an important role in
Japanese school education. Seventy percent of university and junior
college students, 30 percent of upper secondary school students and 80
percent of kindergarteners go to private schools in Japan.
MEXT works to promote the stable and continuous management of
private schools through measures including subsidies focused mainly on
operating costs, loans through the Promotion and Mutual Aid Corporation
for Private Schools of Japan, tax incentives and support for administrative
guidance and improvement.

Promoting the Internationalization of
Universities and Two-way Student Exchanges
The world is rapidly globalizing in various aspects, and giving people
the skills needed to play an active role in the international arena is
becoming increasingly important. Playing a vital role in developing highly
capable human resources, Japanese universities are strongly expected
to work on internationalizing their education and research environments
and promoting two-way student exchanges.
MEXT is moving ahead with the Top Global University Project, which is
designed to support universities that are making an all-out effort to open
their doors to the rest of the world through collaboration with overseas
universities, as well as the Inter-University Exchange Project, which
provides support to collaborative programs with universities in strategically
important countries and regions while assuring the quality of higher
education and so on. There were approximately 42,000 exchange
agreements between Japanese and foreign universities in 2017. An
increasing number of universities have established systematic and
continuous programs by collaborating with foreign universities through
credit transfer and double degree programs.
MEXT is also working to create the Asian Higher Education Community
and promote interaction among students in the region through discussion
and development of guidelines for ASEAN countries, Japan, China and
South Korea.
As of May 2019, there were 312,214 international students studying at
Japanese universities, etc. while 58,408 Japanese students went abroad
to study in 2017.
Moreover, MEXT promotes the "TOBITATE Young Ambassador
Program" aiming to support students' studying abroad with cooperation
from the private sector and is also working on promotion of the strategic
acceptance of outstanding international students in order to facilitate
exchange of Japanese and foreign students.

Scholarship Programs
Scholarship programs are important educational measures for the
goals of equal educational opportunity and human resource development.
They are broadly implemented by various organizations including the
Japan Student Services Organization (JASSO).
In April 2020, MEXT launched a new academic support system for
higher education consisting of the introduction of a system for the
reduction and exemption of tuition fees and the expansion of the granttype scholarship program. Under this new system, MEXT secures
chances for students with clear career visions and motivation to learn at
universities, junior colleges, colleges of technology, or professional
training colleges even if they have difficulties in going on to these schools
due to financial reasons.
The coverage of JASSO's interest-free scholarship loans was
expanded significantly in FY2017 and loans have come to be provided to
all eligible applicants. An income-contingent repayment scheme, in which
the amount of monthly repayment is linked to the individual's income after
graduation, was also introduced and has been implemented.

Send-off party for 8th TOBITATE Young Ambassador Program participants
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SCIENCE &
TECHNOLOGY

Science and
Technology
Policy Bureau
Creating necessary frameworks
for continuous innovation
MEXT plans and proposes basic policies to
realize continuous innovation in science and
technology,
implementing
cross-sectoral
initiatives in line with its science and technology
innovation policies. Specific initiatives include
research and assessments on science and
technology and development of human
resources in science and technology, from
students to leading researchers and engineers.
MEXT also strategically promotes international
activities in science and technology areas and
collaboration among universities, industries,
and the government; advances science and
technology in regional areas; and works on
improving, sharing and creating research
platforms for research and development
infrastructure.

Policy Division
Planning and Evaluation Division
Human Resources Policy Division
Research and Development Infrastructure Division
University-Industry Collaboration and Regional R&D Division

14

Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology

Making Plans and Proposals for Basic Policies
on Science and Technology
MEXT comprehensively promotes science and technology based on
the Fifth Science and Technology Basic Plan (FY2016-FY2020) with the
aim of making Japan the world's most innovative country. Based on this
plan, the Science and Technology Policy Bureau contrives, formulates,
and implements science, technology and innovation policies for realizing
sustainable growth and the advancement of society. Moreover, the
bureau has established the Council for Science and Technology, which
examines and broadly deliberates important policies. The council actively
contributes to the implementation of the Basic Plan by looking at overall
progress of the plan and providing feedback.

Conducting Research and Assessment on
Science and Technology Policy
MEXT investigates and analyzes domestic and international trends in
science and technology, and works on enhancing policies and plans
based on objective evidence by promoting "science for re-designing
science, technology and innovation policies" (SciREX). In addition, MEXT
formulates "Guidelines for Evaluation of Research and Development in
MEXT" and implements R&D evaluation according to the guidelines.
Moreover, based on the Science and Technology Basic Act, MEXT
annually compiles science and technology-related policies implemented
by the government and prepares the annual report on the promotion of
science and technology (White Paper on Science and Technology), which
is submitted to the National Diet.

Nurturing Human Resources in Science and
Technology-related Fields

Teams from different prefectures across Japan competing in the 7th Japan High School Science
Championships (source: Japan Science and Technology Agency)

Facing rapid depopulation, falling birthrates, and population aging,
Japan must foster and secure various human resources who work for
science and technology innovation in order to continue growth and
create new values. While expanding the range of people working in
science and technology-related fields, MEXT advances efforts to foster
outstanding researchers by systematically promoting the cultivation of
human resources at each stage from elementary, lower and upper
secondary school education to higher education, in addition to efforts to
continue fostering those who have received doctoral degrees. MEXT is
also taking measures to encourage active participation in society of
various individuals including young, female and foreign researchers,
research assistants and professional engineers, while promoting research
integrity.
Targeting all people from children to adults with the aim of deepening
their interest and understanding broadly concerning science and
technology, MEXT has prepared a series of posters, "One per Household,"
every year and delivers them to schools and science museums, etc.

nationwide and makes them available on its website.

utilizing intellectual property, and promoting regional science and
technology. Generally, university-originated ventures can promptly
conduct social implementation of technology seeds that may be highly
risky but have high potential for creating new businesses, and they are
important as players in sparking innovation. Accordingly, MEXT is
promoting the creation of university-originated ventures and fostering of
entrepreneurship.

Enhancing Research and Development
Infrastructure

Poster, "One per Household: Antarctica – Window Showing the Future of the Earth"

Strategically Promoting International Activities
in Science and Technology
It is very important to strategically expand Japan's science and
technology internationally to strengthen and maintain our international
competitiveness. Therefore, MEXT promotes science and technology
collaborations with various countries and international organizations.
MEXT also promotes international joint research, through “science and
technology diplomacy”, which combines Japan’s cutting-edge science
and technology with diplomacy. Furthermore, MEXT facilitates
international exchanges of researchers by dispatching Japanese
researchers and accepting foreign researchers with the aim of building an
international research network.
The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) were launched by the
United Nations as goals in order to comprehensively deal with wideranging problems concerning the economy, society and the environment.
MEXT compiled the ways in which it could contribute to the achievement
of the SDGs through its science and technology innovation (STI) policies
and formulated the "MEXT STI for SDGs Package." Based on this policy
package, the ministry is striving to facilitate STI for SDGs.

In order to produce cutting-edge research outcomes, the research
facilities, equipment and devices used by researchers, which are the
foundation upon which their research and development (R&D) rests, must
be maintained at the latest international standards. MEXT works on
maintaining and upgrading large research facilities such as SPring-8
(large synchrotron radiation facility), SACLA (X-ray free-electron laser
facility), and J-PARC (high intensity neutron beam facility), and promoting
their shared use. Additionally, MEXT is facilitating a public-private
partnership plan for next-generation synchrotron radiation facilities, for
which industry needs are highly expected in addition to needs in the
academic research field. In addition, the ministry promotes R&D along
with the application of state-of-the-art measurement analysis technologies
and equipment, which are not only fundamental but instrumental to R&D
in a wide range of fields.
MEXT also proactively promotes R&D of quantum science and
technology, which is becoming more and more important as a
fundamental technology for creating scientific and technological
innovations, with the aim of utilizing the technology in solving significant
problems in Japan's economy and industry, while striving to maximize the
function of the National Institutes for Quantum and Radiological Science
and Technology as a platform to support Japan's quantum science and
technology.
Seeking breakthroughs exercising a significant impact on economy
and society, MEXT promotes high-risk and high-impact R&D with
challenging goals for the purpose of proactively creating discontinuous
innovations.
X-ray free-electron
laser facility
SACLA

Large synchrotron
radiation facility
SPring-8

Gene analysis experiment on rice conducted under the Science and Technology
Research Par tnership for Sustainable Development (SATREPS) project:
"Rice Farming Research for Tailor-made Growing and Cultivation Technology
Development" (partner country: Kenya)

Large synchrotron radiation facility (SPring-8); X-ray free-electron laser facility (SACLA) (RIKEN:
Sayo-cho, Hyogo) (source: RIKEN)

Establishing a Systemic Virtuous Cycle of Human
Resources, Knowledge, and Capital for Innovation
Establishing a systemic virtuous cycle of human resources, knowledge,
and capital is vital to sparking the innovation that will help the regional
revitalization and growth of Japan and vitalize research at universities and
other facilities. To this end, MEXT has been implementing projects for
promoting collaborative research among the government, industry and
academia, assisting universities in establishing large-scale university/
industry collaborative research and development platforms, strategically
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Research
Promotion
Bureau
Promoting academic and basic
research in universities, and
advancing
science
and
technology corresponding to
policy issues
MEXT advances policies to promote academic
research originating from researchers' creative
ideas by assisting research organizations and
providing research grants. MEXT also promotes
research in the fields of life sciences, information
technology, nanotechnology and materials, and
particle and nuclear physics. Moreover, MEXT
promotes basic research aimed at practical
application, while working to improve research
facilities including research infrastructure and
equipment and advancing their utilization in a
variety of fields.

Policy Division

Promoting Academic and Basic Research
Academic and basic research are the foundation for opening new
knowledge frontiers and the source of stimulating innovation, and
contribute to the expansion of intellectual assets shared by all of
humanity.
MEXT works to promote academic research at universities and interuniversity research institutes to generate a diversity of knowledge
based on creative ideas, striving to secure basic funds that support
academic research and to expand the Grants-in-Aid for Scientific
Research (KAKENHI), while reviewing the screening system and actively
implementing system reforms such as establishing a fund to allow
multiple-year appropriations of research funds.
Moreover, MEXT has strengthened systems for shared use and
joint research, offering support for aggregating knowledge of excellent
researchers in Japan and overseas by creating an international research
hub and large-scale projects to challenge academic frontiers by
developing cutting-edge large research equipment, thereby contributing
to the enhancement of Japan's research capabilities. These initiatives
include the promotion of research work on the neutrino using SuperKamiokande (SK), for which Dr. Kajita Takaaki of the University of
Tokyo won the Nobel Prize in physics, and using its successor, HyperKamiokande (HK). The ministry also supports education and research
through the Science Information Network (SINET5) as an academic artery
contributing to the strengthening of functions of universities, etc., aiming
to enhance the international competitiveness of Japan's education and
research and accelerate frontier research.
Basic research also plays a crucial role in the nation's social and
economic development through stimulating innovation. MEXT promotes
innovation-oriented basic research with competitive grants such as
the Strategic Basic Research Programs, and also supports emergent
research so that researchers can devote themselves to challenging
research and create excellent outcomes based on the diversity and
integration. The National Research and Development Institute, RIKEN,
has been carrying out R&D for realizing innovation as a comprehensive
research institution for research in a diverse range of scientific disciplines.
MEXT also promotes the World Premier International Research Center
Initiative (WPI), aiming to create research environment of a sufficiently high
standard to give them a highly visible presence within the global scientific
community that will be of strong incentive to frontline researchers around
the world to want to come and work at these centers.
Dr. Yoshino Akira won the Nobel Prize in Chemistry in 2019 and the
total number of Japanese Nobel Prize winners has reached 27.(*) Since
the beginning of the 21st century, in particular, the number of Japanese
winners in the three fields of science is 18, the second largest in the
world, following the United States. It is important to continuously offer
diverse support and further enhance related measures in order to ensure
sustainable achievement of academic and basic research in Japan.
(*) Including Dr. Nambu Yoichiro (2008) and Dr. Nakamura Shuji (2014), who are US
nationals, and excluding Mr. Ishiguro Kazuo

Basic Research Promotion Division
Scientific Research Institutes Division
Scientific Research Aid Division
Life Sciences Division
Information Science and Technology Division
Materials Science and Nanotechnology Division
Super-Kamiokande (source: Kamioka
Observatory, Institute for Cosmic Ray
Research, University of Tokyo)
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Dr. Yoshino Akira winning the Nobel Prize in
2019 (source: Asahi Kasei Corporation)

Promoting Research and Development in Life
Sciences
Life sciences aim to elucidate the complex and delicate mechanisms of
life phenomena carried out by living organisms. It is also a promising field
that is expected to greatly contribute to enhancing the nation's lifestyle
and socio-economic development by realizing drastic advancement
in medical treatments and drug discovery and resolving food and
environmental problems.
MEXT works to advance the realization of regenerative medicine by
supporting stem cell research including induced pluripotent stem cells
(iPS cells), basic research on the prevention, diagnosis and treatment
of COVID-19 and other infectious diseases, cancer and lifestyle-related
diseases, brain science research aimed at analyzing the brain's functions
and overcoming neuropsychiatric disorders such as depression and
dementia, and R&D for realizing genomic medicine. Moreover, MEXT
works to advance foundations of analytical equipment, databases and
bio-resources, which contribute to a wide variety of life science research.

capable of responding to users' various needs, and working to create
research outputs.

Promoting Research and Development in
Nanotechnology and Materials Science
In nanotechnology, atoms and molecules are manipulated at the
nanometer scale (one billionth of a meter) to create completely new
functions. The field of nanotechnology and materials science has
cultivated and led new possibilities of science and technologies and has
played significant roles in leading social changes, while creating new
values in each era through supporting a wide range of technological
fields. MEXT has promoted the development of new materials to replace
rare earth and other critical elements and the formulation of a nationwide
system for shared use through collaboration between cutting-edge
research facilities related to nanotechnology and universities and research
institutes that have knowhow regarding the use thereof. In recent years,
data-driven R&D has been advancing in this field. For example, the
National Institute for Materials Science is carrying out highly productive
research, combining analysis of a large volume of high-quality data by AI
and enhancement of efficiency in experiments using robotic technologies,
with the aim of accelerating the development of innovative new materials.

Human iPS cells (colony)
(source: Prof. Yamanaka Shinya, Kyoto University)

Promoting Research and Development in
Information Science and Technology
Information science and technology, including innovative computing
technology, data analysis technology and network technology, are the key
to deriving successful results in various fields and are common basic
technologies indispensable for achieving Society 5.0, which aims to balance
economic development and solution of social problems through the
integration of cyberspace and physical space.
In particular, artificial intelligence (AI) has come to attract people's
attention as a result of advancement in the ability of hardware to process
big data and progress in machine learning including deep learning, and is
expected to make contributions to measures against COVID-19 infection.
MEXT is promoting initiatives toward R&D and social implementation of AI
technologies, while comprehensively facilitating R&D on innovative basic
technologies centered on the RIKEN Center for Advanced Intelligence
Project and funding for challenging research themes. For achieving
Society 5.0, a robust infrastructure for calculation is indispensable. The
supercomputer Fugaku, the world's most advanced supercomputer, was
ranked at the top in four sectors as published in June and November 2020
and its full-fledged operation will be commenced on 9th March 2021. MEXT
also connects supercomputers including the supercomputer Fugaku, at
several national universities and research institutes through the Science
Information NETwork (SINET5) to build High-Performance Computing
Infrastructure (HPCI). HPCI aims at realizing computing environments

SiAlON phosphor that contributed to the dissemination of LED lighting by
achieving daylight color and light bulb color (source: Nacasa & Partners Inc.)

Promoting Research and Development in the Fields
of Elementary Particles and Nuclear Physics
By using particle accelerators, the field of elementary particles and
nuclear physics aims to probe into the properties of elementary particles
and nuclei that constitute the materials and to clarify their structure and
the origin of elements and fundamental forces at work in the universe.
Achievements in this field include the discovery of element 113 (Nihonium)
and the awarding of the Nobel prize by Dr. Kobayashi and Dr. Masukawa.
Recently, an international joint experiment was commenced using the
Super-KEKB accelerator / Belle II detector, a major upgrade of KEKB,
which contributed to the awarding of the Nobel prize. MEXT promotes
pursuing the fundamental laws of nature and developing cutting-edge
particle accelerators.

Examples of research themes concerning
countermeasures against COVID-19 infection being
conducted using the supercomputer Fugaku
(Above: Search for candidate medicine; Below:
Prediction of droplet spread)

(source: Prof. Okuno Yasushi, RIKEN Center for
Computational Science, Kyoto University)

Super-KEKB accelerator / Belle II detector (source: High Energy Accelerator
Research Organization)

Supercomputer "Fugaku"
(source: RIKEN Center for Computational Science)

(source: RIKEN Center for Computational Science,
Toyohashi University of Technology, and Kobe
University; with cooperation from Kyoto Institute
of Technology, Osaka University, and Daio Paper
Corporation)
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Research and
Development
Bureau
Conducting large-scale research
and development in the fields of
space, nuclear power, oceans,
environment and energy, and
earthquakes and disaster pre
vention
MEXT promotes research and development to
solve social problems related to the environment
and energy, earthquakes and disaster
prevention, and advances research and
development on a national scale in the fields of
space, nuclear energy, oceans and the earth
including rockets and satellites, the nuclear fuel
cycle and fusion energy, and Antarctic
observation and deep-sea exploration.

Policy Division
Earthquake and Disaster-Reduction Research Division
Ocean and Earth Division
Environment and Energy Division
Space Development and Utilization Division
Atomic Energy Division

Promoting Research and Development in the
Space and Aviation Fields
Space development and utilization play a crucial role in strengthening
Japan's core foundations. Advances in space development are
indispensable for improving the quality of people's lives and developing
industry, contributing to disaster prevention and mitigation, and acquiring
new knowledge on space science research through the utilization of
satellite-based applications including telecommunications, broadcasting,
weather forecasting, and earth observation. The Research and Develop
ment Bureau has been promoting the development of rockets and
satellites, space science and exploration, and human space activities.
As aircraft are also indispensable for the development of economy and
society and the enhancement of people's lives, it is vital to pursue cuttingedge technologies in aeronautics to advance the competitiveness of
Japan's aviation industry and to ensure passenger safety.
With regard to rockets, so far, Japan has succeeded in the launch of the
national primary launching vehicle 49 times in a row as a result of
technological development and has demonstrated high reliability
internationally. It is necessary to maintain such high reliability and further
enhance Japan's international competitiveness in this field.
Satellites have contributed to ascertaining the status of damage upon
large-scale natural disasters and understanding the mechanism of
climate change, and further technological development is expected to
achieve more detailed and broader observations.
In the field of space science and exploration, efforts have been made
through international competition and cooperation to acquire new
knowledge that may cast light on the mysteries of space and the solar
system and to develop innovative and embryonic technologies that may
expand the areas of activities in outer space.
In the International Space Station Program, Japan has been
cooperatively working with other countries to comprehensively promote
the utilization of the space environment, such as operating and expanding
the use of the Japanese Experiment Module “Kibo.” Japan completed
missions for all nine H-II Transfer Vehicles (HTVs) "KOUNOTORI." Steady
operation of "KOUNOTORI" raised Japan’s international presence. Japan
is now developing a new H-II Transfer Vehicle (HTV-X), as the successor
of "KOUNOTORI."
Furthermore, Japan is proceeding with efforts to acquire the capabilities
required for lunar exploration and deep space exploration, based on the
“Policy of Japan on the Participation in International Space Exploration
under the Proposal of the United States” (in October 2019) and the “Joint
Exploration Declaration of Intent for Lunar Cooperation between MEXT
and NASA” (in July 2020).
● Promote research and development of space transportation systems
such as the new national primary launching vehicle H3 to maintain and
ensure autonomy in launching satellites and other spacecraft whenever
necessary;
● Promote research and development of remote-sensing satellites that
contribute to more detailed observation of the global environment and
disaster monitoring, and strengthen the international competitiveness of
communication satellites, etc.;
● Conduct experiments utilizing the space environment and train
Japanese astronauts through the operation of "Kibo";
● Participate in the Artemis Program by leveraging advantages of
Japan's strengths acquired through the operations of "Kibo" and
"KOUNOTORI";
● Promote space science research at the highest level in the world such
as space exploration to study the evolution of the solar system
represented by the "Hayabusa 2" mission and astronomical observation
to explore the origin of space; and
● Promote research and development in aviation science and
technology that will achieve supersonic passenger aircraft and electric
aircraft, enhance safety against special weather conditions, and improve
fuel efficiency of engines.

Nuclear Liability Division

Launch of Transfer Vehicle "KOUNOTORI"
No. 9 (HTV9) by H-IIB Launch Vehicle No. 9
(source: JAXA)
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Lunar Orbital Platform-Gateway (conceptual
drawing) (source: JAXA)

Promoting Research and Development in the
Nuclear Energy Field
MEXT promotes nuclear energy research and development which is
strategically vital for Japan. Based on lessons learned from the Tokyo
Electric Power Company's Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station (1F)
accident, MEXT is supporting basic foundational research and human
resource development and promoting measures to help revive
communities affected by the disaster including compensation for damage
caused by the nuclear accident.
● Promote efforts for basic foundational research and human resource
development in the nuclear energy field;
● Promote research and development related to decommissioning of
1F and recovery of the environment, which are necessary to help
accelerate the revitalization of communities affected by the nuclear
accident;
● Promote research and development of the nuclear fuel cycle, which
contributes to effective reuses as fuel and reduction of the volume and
hazard of radioactive waste through reprocessing spent fuel;
● Safely and steadily proceed decommissioning of nuclear facilities,
such as the Fast Breeder Reactor "Monju"
● Promote research on severe accidents, etc. that contributes to
securing nuclear safety carried out by research organizations;
● Promote measures for sup
port
ing the harmonious re
la
tion
ship
between each nuclear facility and
its host community, and measures
for securing nonproliferation and
the peaceful use of nuclear energy.

Promoting Research and Development in the
Oceans and on Polar Regions
MEXT works on investigation and research for effective utilization of
marine resources, resolution of global environmental issues and
prevention and mitigation of damage due to offshore earthquakes, and
also on research and development of oceans and the Earth to elucidate
the nature of unknown regions of the deep sea and polar regions.
● Promote observations and research on the Arctic and Antarctic areas,
which are supposed to hold the key to understanding mechanisms of
global warming and other climate change issues, in addition to
oceanographic observation and investigation using research vessels and
robot crafts, in order to gain a comprehensive understanding of the Earth
system centered on oceans;
● Promote Japan, European consortium and the U.S.-led International
Ocean Discovery Program (IODP), using deep-sea drilling vessels such
as "Chikyu" to drill on the deep sea floor to elucidate the mechanisms of
large-scale undersea earthquakes and the deep biosphere.

Deep-sea scientific drilling vessel "Chikyu"
Ⓒ JAMSTEC/IODP
Collaborative Laboratories for Advanced
Decommissioning Science (CLADS)

Promoting Research and Development in the
Environment and Energy Fields
In order to contribute to balancing economic growth and significant
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and to climate change adaptation,
MEXT promotes research and development to create a clean and
economic energy system.
● Promote research and development on innovative energy
technologies, such as next-generation semiconductors and storage
batteries, which would contribute to achieving an energy saving society;
● Promote research and development on climate change projections,
including the creation of highly accurate information for climate change
projections and the clarification of the mechanism of climate change,
which serves as the foundation of domestic and international climate
change measures (mitigation and adaptation);
● Promote cutting-edge research and development on fusion energy
including the ITER Project and the Broader Approach (BA) Activities
under international collaboration, in order to realize fusion energy, which
is explained as "creating the sun on earth."

Projection of precipitation distributions due to climate change in 209X in Japan and
surrounding area (Outcome of MEXT's "Integrated Research Program for Advancing
Climate Models") (source: Japan Meteorological Business Support Center)

Promoting Research and Development in the
Earthquake and Disaster Prevention Fields
Japan is geographically located in a natural disaster-prone area
frequently hit by earthquakes and tsunamis, volcanic eruptions, typhoons,
heavy rains and heavy snowfalls, such as the Heavy Rain Event of July
2020 and the 2011 Great East Japan Earthquake. MEXT promotes
research and development which aims to mitigate damages caused by
natural disasters.
● Propose policies for earthquake research promotion and promote
research for improving accuracy in forecasting earthquakes in terms of
the probability of earthquake occurrence and its magnitude, and for
better understanding the mechanisms of earthquakes;
● Engage in large-scale observation and research projects on future
earthquakes, including earthquakes in the Nankai Trough region and
those occurring directly under the Tokyo Metropolitan area, which are
predicted to cause major socioeconomic damage;
● Promote research and development of earthquake-resistant
technologies by utilizing the E-Defense 3D full-scale earthquake testing
facility and science and technology for mitigating various types of natural
disasters.

3D Full-scale Earthquake Testing Facility (E-Defense)
(source: National Research Institute for Earth Science
and Disaster Prevention)
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SPORTS
Establishment of the Japan Sports Agency

Japan Sports
Agency
Striving to comprehensively
promote sports-related policies
and to realize a sports-oriented
nation
MEXT strives to promote community sports,
enrich school physical education programs,
strengthen international competitiveness, and
advance the Olympic and Paralympic
movement. With the establishment of the Japan
Sports Agency, MEXT aims to actively promote
a healthy lifestyle through sports, sports for the
disabled, regional and economic revitalization,
and international exchanges and cooperation.

The Japan Sports Agency was established in October 2015 as an
external bureau of MEXT. The Agency aims to disseminate the value of
sports from Japan, and to help create an environment where everyone
can enjoy sports. The Agency is in charge of creating broad core policies
related to sports. It coordinates policies and collaborates with other
ministries to enhance a healthy lifestyle through sports along with regional
and economic revitalization. The Agency also encourages measures in
new areas such as international exchanges and cooperation through
sports, and strives to create a society where people can maintain
wholesome and cultured living throughout their lives, as stipulated in the
principles of the Basic Act on Sport.

Promoting a Healthy Lifestyle through Sports
The Japan Sports Agency aims to achieve a healthy longevity society
wherein all people enjoy sports throughout their lives and make self-help
efforts to promote a healthy lifestyle and extend healthy life expectancy.
For that purpose, the Agency carries out projects to develop an
environment to enable all people, regardless of age, gender or disability,
to enjoy sports easily and encourage them to start doing some sports
and to make exercise a habit.
Logo for "Sport in Life"
The Agency is carrying out the "Sport in Life" campaign,
aiming to achieve, as a legacy of the Olympic and
Paralympic Games Tokyo 2020, a society where as many
people as possible enjoy sports and sports are naturally
incorporated as part of people's daily lives.

Promoting Para-Sports

Policy Division
Sports for Health Division

The Japan Sports Agency is actively promoting para-sports so that
people with disabilities can participate in society through sports.
Specifically, the Agency assists people who work in sports-related fields
and those who engage in welfare services for the disabled with their
efforts to create a collaboration and cooperation framework and develop
an environment to enable everyone to enjoy sports in their own backyard,
regardless of whether they have disabilities or not. Additionally, the
Agency advances an initiative to create community-based para-sports
centers using Schools for Special Needs Education, etc., which are
facilities familiar to disabled children and adults, thereby striving to further
disseminate and promote para-sports.

Competitive Sports Division
International Affairs Division
Olympic and Paralympic Games Division
Community Development Division
Sports Organizations Support and Private-Sector
Cooperation Division

FY2017 National Sports Festival for People with Disabilities
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Regional and Economic Revitalization through
Sports
In order to promote regional and economic revitalization through
sports, it is essential to create a virtuous circle of vitalization of the sports
industry, enhancement of the sports environment, and expansion of the
sporting population. The Japan Sports Agency implements sportsfocused initiatives aimed at revitalizing local communities such as by
promoting sports tourism and hosting large-scale sporting events and
training camps. The Agency also strives to improve the attractiveness
and profitability of sports facilities, strengthen management capabilities of
sports organizations, develop sports management human resources,
expand the sphere of sports through integration with other industries,
and promote international expansion of the sports industry, with an eye to
transforming sports into a growth industry in Japan.

Preparing for the Olympic and Paralympic
Games Tokyo 2020
In order to make the Olympic and Paralympic Games Tokyo 2020 a
success, the Japan Sports Agency strives to build an environment to
enable athletes to exhibit their best performance. The Agency, in
cooperation with relevant government agencies, is working toward the
smooth preparation and management of the Olympic and Paralympic
Games Tokyo 2020 in collaboration with the Tokyo Organizing Committee
of the Olympic and Paralympic Games, the Tokyo Metropolitan
Government, the Japanese Olympic Committee (JOC), and the Japanese
Paralympic Committee (JPC). Moreover, the Agency also aims to expand
the Olympic and Paralympic movement by advancing international
contributions through sports, and expanding Olympic and Paralympic
education nationwide.

Enriching School Physical Education and School
Sports Clubs
The school curriculum for physical education and health places
importance on realizing a fulfilling and active lifestyle by having students
foster the quality and ability to enjoy sport throughout their lifetime. Based
on this premise, the Japan Sports Agency strives to enrich the content of
physical education and health classes, to revitalize sports club activities
and to enrich teaching curricula.

Olympic and Paralympic education

International Exchange and Cooperation
through Sports

Students participating in a gym class (source: Shinagawa municipal school, Houyou no Mori
Gakuen)

Strengthening International Competitiveness

Japan is promoting international contributions in the field of sports
through the "Sport for Tomorrow Programme."
The Programme advances "International cooperation and exchange
through sports," "Academy for Tomorrow's Leaders in Sport," and "PLAY
TRUE 2020 - Develop sport integrity by strengthening global anti-doping
activities." Through these, Japan aims to expand sporting values and the
Olympic and Paralympic movement to people of all generations for a
better world. The Government of Japan has committed to creating our
future through the power of sports by reaching more than 10 million
people in over 100 countries toward the Olympic and Paralympic Games
Tokyo 2020.

The Japan Sports Agency is assisting respective sports associations in
their efforts for strengthening top athletes and detecting and nurturing
high-potential athletes, offering assistance based on sports medicine and
science, and improving the basis for training and research so that athletes
can deliver excellent performance in various international competitions. In
particular, the Agency is endeavoring to ensure that athletes can devote
themselves to their training toward the 2020 Tokyo Olympic and
Paralympic Games and the Winter Olympics in Beijing in 2022 even amid
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Assistance to the Tanzania National Baseball Team through the "Sport for Tomorrow Programme"
(source: JAPAN SPORT COUNCIL)
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CULTURE

Agency for
Cultural Affairs
Aiming to achieve a new "Nation
Based on Culture and the Arts"
through the promotion of arts
and culture, ahead of the fullscale relocation of the Agency
to Kyoto
Ahead of the full-scale relocation to Kyoto (aiming to
start services within FY2022), the Japan Sports Agency
has worked on structural reform and strengthening of
functions suited to its renewal, and implements a variety
of policies on the promotion of culture and the arts
towards realizing a "Nation Based on Culture and the
Arts" (building the nation by promoting arts and culture
as the nation's core policy). In concrete terms, the
Agency helps to foster artists and related persons to
nurture artistic activities, and promotes regional culture,
food culture, cultural tourism, preservation and
utilization of cultural properties such as national
treasures and historic sites, activities of museums,
international cultural exchanges, copyright protection
and exploitation of works, improvement and spread of
the Japanese language, and Japanese language
classes for foreigners. The Agency is also in charge of
work related to religion.

Comprehensively Promoting Culture and Art
Policies
On March 6, 2018, a Cabinet decision was made on the Basic Plan on
the Promotion of Culture and the Arts (First Term) based on the Basic Act
on Culture and the Arts. This plan covering the five years from FY2018 to
FY2022 clarifies ideal culture and art policies into the future and basic
directions to be aimed at for realizing them. Ahead of the full-scale
relocation to Kyoto, the Agency fundamentally strengthened its functions
and conducted structural reorganization, by additionally taking charge of
planning of basic policies on culture and adjustments of affairs of relevant
administrative organs. Based on these efforts, the Agency aims to
comprehensively promote culture and art policies and globally spread the
value of Japanese cultural properties and traditions in further strengthened
collaboration with other relevant ministries and agencies. Drawing on the
ripple effect on society created by arts and culture, the Agency will strive
to overcome various issues to build a new social model befitting a mature
society.

Promoting Food Culture
Japan has diverse food culture rooted in its rich natural climate,
spirituality and history. The Agency for Cultural Affairs has been
deliberating basic approaches and concrete measures for policies on
food culture in order to disseminate the cultural value of Japanese cuisine
broadly among people around the world and hand it down to future
generations.

Promoting Cultural Tourism
Cultural tourism refers to tourism aiming to deepen people's
understanding concerning culture through having them see or experience
cultural resources. Promotion of cultural tourism expands opportunities
for local people to deepen understanding on their own regional culture
and increases visits by Japanese and foreign tourists to respective
regions, thereby leading to a virtuous cycle of promotion of culture and
tourism and regional vitalization. In order to create such virtuous cycle,
the Agency has been endeavoring to strengthen functions of cultural
facilities and promote cultural tourism jointly with respective regions
under the Cultural Tourism Promotion Act and has been offering support
for regional efforts for vitalization, making the most of Japan Heritage
sites.

Policy Division
Planning and Coordination Division
Cultural Economy and International Affairs Division
Japanese Language Division
Copyright Division
Cultural Resources Utilization Division

"Spectacular Scenery and Unexplored Land Created by Wind from the Japan Sea," Japan
Heritage certified in FY2019 (Wind-wrought patterns at the Tottori Sand Dune and Kirinjishi
dance)

First Cultural Properties Division
Second Cultural Properties Division
Religious Affairs Division
Culture and Creativity Division
Arts and Culture Division
Food Culture Division
Cultural Tourism Division
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Promoting Arts and Culture
Arts and culture including music, theater, dance, film, animation and
manga play an essential role, enriching people's lives by creating
happiness and inspiration, while also having the power to invigorate
society as a whole.
In order to promote arts and culture in Japan, the Agency supports
creative performing arts such as music, theater and dance, fosters young
and professional artists, provides substantial opportunities for children to
experience arts and culture, assists local arts and cultural activities, and
promotes media arts such as animation and manga through the Japan
Media Arts Festival.

Japan Cultural Expo

cultural heritage overseas by actively joining in international cooperation,
sending and inviting experts, and supporting the development of human
resources.

The Agency holds the Japan Cultural Expo in many parts nationwide to
domestically and internationally communicate the arts of Japan that has
a long history from the Jomon Era to the present. Under the major
concept of "Humanity and Nature in Japan," cultural projects, such as art
exhibitions, stage performances, and cultural festivals exhibiting the arts
of Japan for all four seasons are being carried
out throughout the year nationwide, with the
aim of strengthening national branding based
on cultural appeals, increasing demand for
domestic tourism, and restoring inbound
demand.

Preservation and Utilization of Cultural Properties
Cultural properties are precious national assets which have been
created and cultivated throughout Japan's long history, and carefully
handed down to the present. For that reason, based on the Act on the
Protection of Cultural Properties, the Agency conducts designation, etc.
of important items and places as National Treasures, Important Cultural
Properties, Historic Sites, Places of Scenic Beauty, Natural Monuments,
etc. While the Agency places certain restrictions on changing the existing
conditions and on the exportation of cultural properties, it also takes
other measures including those to preserve cultural properties through
conservation and restoration, the establishment of disaster prevention
facilities, and the provision of subsidies for public authorities to purchase
historic sites. The program focuses on promoting integrated use of Japan
Heritage sites and other regional cultural properties, making easy-tounderstand guides to cultural properties available in multiple languages,
and maintaining cultural assets through regular repair and cleaning to
make them truly attractive and accessible to people as well as something
the local people rely on.
Furthermore, the Agency works to register Japan's tangible and
intangible cultural heritage as UNESCO World Heritage sites and
Intangible Cultural Assets.
Additionally, in consideration of the fact that museums play significant
roles in internationally communicating and promoting understanding of
Japanese culture and contribute to revitalizing local communities and
attracting inbound demand, the Agency also promotes overall activities
of museums through measures for facilitation of pioneering efforts for
multilingualization and human resources development such as the
enhancement of the quality of curators.

Cooking practice at the International Centre for Culinary Arts (ICCA) in Dubai by FY2019 Japan
Cultural Envoy Tamura Keigo

Promoting Copyright Policies Responding to a
New Era
The Agency has established the Subdivision on Copyright in the
Council for Cultural Affairs to consider improvements to the copyright law
system to respond to social changes and the development and diffusion
of information technologies.
It also performs educational services pertinent to copyright, and
implements various policies to promote smooth use and distribution of
works.
Furthermore, it responds to international issues by strengthening
countermeasures against pirated goods circulated overseas and by
participating in international rule making on copyright.

Enhancing Japanese Language Policy and Promoting
Policy on Japanese Language Education for Foreigners
In light of the importance of the Japanese language as a crucial
foundation of Japanese culture, the Agency promotes the improvement
and dissemination of the Japanese language. Specifically, the Agency is
working to disseminate deliberations and reports (e.g. the Joyo Kanjihyo, or national list of Chinese characters in common use, common
knowledge) of the Subdivision on the Japanese Language of the Council
for Cultural Affairs (formerly the Japanese Language Council) , and to
conduct the survey of consciousness on Japanese Language.
Moreover, the Agency promotes Japanese language education for
foreigners living in Japan by supporting the implementation of Japanese
language classes, fostering human resources in charge of teaching
Japanese classes and conducting various research and surveys.

Joyo kanji-hyo
The Joyo kanji-hyo is national list of Chinese characters in common use necessary to read
and write Japanese today. The Joyo kanji-hyo is based on the Cabinet decision made on
November 30, 2010, and the report on the revised Joyo kanji-hyo released on June 7, 2010 by
the Council for Cultural Affairs. The Agency for Cultural Affairs examines ways to further enable
the easy use of the Joyo kanji-hyo.

Administration of Religious Affairs
Repair work for the roof of the Main Hall of Kiyomizudera Temple, national treasure (Kyoto
Prefecture)

Promoting International Cultural Exchanges and
International Cooperation
Promotion of international exchanges and cooperation related to art
and culture advances the development of cultural and artistic activities in
Japan and also contributes to their development worldwide.
The Agency makes outstanding Japanese culture known around the
world through initiatives such as sending specialists in culture as "Japan
Cultural Envoy," and promoting international cultural exchanges through
art exchanges.
In addition, the Agency promotes the appropriate preservation of

The Agency is in charge of administrative affairs related to certification
of religious juridical persons based on the Religious Juridical Persons Act,
collection of materials pertaining to religion, and appropriate administration
of the religious juridical persons system.
The Religious Juridical Persons Council was established as an advisory
organ to the Minister of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and
Technology.

Agency for Cultural
Affairs Website (English)

The Journal of Agency
for Cultural Affairs
(English)
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Minister's
Secretariat

Attendance to International Conferences

Chief administrative coordinator
The Minister's Secretariat has comprehensive
responsibility for coordinating MEXT's overall
policies. In addition to general management
functions such as personnel, general affairs
and accounting, it performs overall administra
tive functions such as policy evaluation, infor
mation disclosure, public relations, information
processing, administering international relations
and international cooperation.

In September 2020, the G20 Education Ministers Meeting was held
using the teleconference system and G20 countries discussed such
matters as early childhood education, internationalization of education,
and continuation of education under critical circumstances amid
expansion of COVID-19 infection.
With regard to the continuation of education under critical
circumstances, Japan emphasized the significance of balancing
children's learning and the fight against the continuing COVID-19
pandemic and introduced initiatives by respective schools and MEXT's
support measures to share knowledge and views with other countries.
In this manner, Japan has been promoting collaboration and
cooperation with related countries and organizations through delivering
messages and information at international conferences.

Personnel Division
Management and Coordination Division
Budget and Accounts Division
Policy Division

G20 Education Ministers Meeting held using the teleconference system

International Affairs Division

Director-General for
International Affairs
Promoting UNESCO activities
for achieving SDGs
In collaboration with the United Nations
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization
(UNESCO), whose base is located in Paris, the
Director-General for International Affairs works
to promote UNESCO activities inside and
outside of Japan. Based on the idea of
UNESCO, "it is in the minds of men that the
defences of peace must be constructed," the
Director-General is in charge of Education for
Sustainable Development (ESD) and other
cooperative projects in the education and
science fields among the Asia-Pacific region,
development of Biosphere Reserves and
UNESCO Global Geoparks in Japan, and
implementation of other UNESCO projects
including the Creative Cities Network, with the
aim of achieving the SDGs.

40th session of the UNESCO General Conference

Japanese National
Commission for
UNESCO (English)

ESD : Education
for Sustainable
Development (English)

Responses to COVID-19 Infection
COVID-19 infection, an unprecedented infectious disease, spread all over the world very rapidly. Under the national government's
policy, MEXT has collaborated with educational and research institutions and all other related organizations and has taken measures to
prevent spread of infection at schools, etc., while securing learning opportunities for children and students and offering support to
students facing financial difficulties and also to foreign students and Japanese schools. The ministry is also endeavoring to promote
research and surveys and support sports and cultural activities.
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Minister's Secretariat

Department of
Facilities Planning and
Disaster Prevention
Aiming for safe, secure and highquality education facilities
Aiming for safe, secure and high-quality education
facilities, the Department of Facilities Planning and
Disaster Prevention promotes improvement in the
earthquake resistance including nonstructural parts*
and disaster prevention functions of school facilities
such as making them barrier-free, and also promotes
Eco Schools and operates measures for restoring aging
facilities, while establishing guidelines for maintaining
school facilities. The department gathers information on
damage upon the occurrence of a disaster and assists
schools in disaster recovery. Moreover, it promotes the
enhancement of national university campuses to
support educational and research activities.
*Nonstructural parts: Parts other than the structures of a
building, such as ceiling materials, lighting equipment, window
glass, exterior materials, interior materials, facility equipment,
furniture, etc.

Policy Division
Local Facilities Aid Division
National Facilities Division
Disaster Prevention and Technical Affairs Division

Promoting the Improvement of Safe and Secure School
Facilities, Disaster Response and Disaster Recovery
Schools need to secure a safe and high-quality environment where
children can learn and enjoy other activities livelily. It is important to make
responses flexibly to social changes, including diversification of the contents
and methods of education, the declining birth rate and aging population, and
advancement of information and communications technologies.
Therefore, MEXT publishes guidelines for presenting points to be
considered in planning and designing school facilities as well as collections
of good practices, and disseminates them among school establishers.
Through the provision of government subsidies, MEXT assists local
governments with their efforts to improve the earthquake resistance of
public-school facilities including nonstructural parts. School facilities must
also be multifunctional and equipped to function as places for education as
well as evacuation centers. MEXT works to strengthen schools' disaster
prevention functions by building escape routes, outdoor escape stairs,
storage areas for emergency supplies, outdoor toilets and generation
facilities, and by making facilities barrier-free.
Moreover, in the event of a disaster, MEXT provides assistance by
gathering information on damage and calling on related organizations to take
necessary measures to secure children's safety, and also subsidizes a
portion of the expenses needed for the recovery of public-school facilities.
MEXT also promotes the establishment of Eco Schools by improving
school facilities to reduce their environmental impact while enhancing their
coexistence with nature. Eco Schools will also be used for environmental
education while serving as a base for disseminating local environmental and
energy education.
In terms of building area, nearly 80 percent of all public elementary and
lower secondary schools were constructed over 25 years ago. Thus, the
aging of school facilities is a critical issue. In order to improve the safety and
function of as many schools as possible within a limited budget, school
facilities must not only be renovated by conventional methods to withstand a
service life of 40 years, but must be upgraded into structures with a long
service life of up to 80 years, while keeping construction costs low and
environmental waste to a minimum. As such, MEXT established a system in
FY2013 to subsidize renovations. The aim of these renovations is to improve
the durability of school facilities and provide children with a secure educational
environment. MEXT also assists local governments to advance measures for
schools to improve the service life of school facilities by providing instructions
for the planned development of improving aging school facilities.

Eco-schools
Eco schools are school facilities that raise environmental awareness.
They contribute to reduce the environmental impact, while also used for
environmental education, taking the lead as the base for disseminating local
environmental education.

Promoting the Improvement of Facilities at National
Universities and Other Higher Educational Institutions

Renovating aging facilities to improve education environments

The facilities of national universities and other higher educational
institutions are vital foundations for the development of creative human
resources, innovative and diverse academic research, and advanced medical
treatments.
However, now that an increasing number of such facilities will soon reach
50 years of age, higher educational institutions are facing the challenge of
ensuring safety and adequate functions of these aging facilities in addition to
the challenge of securing funds for maintaining them. These problems pose
obstacles to their efforts to meet advanced and more diverse educational
and research needs, such as the enhancement of international
competitiveness and promotion of university-industry-government
collaboration.
Accordingly, MEXT formulated its "Fourth Five-Year Program for Facilities
of National Universities" (FY2016-FY2020) in March 2016. The program aims
to strategically implement facility management measures as part of university
operations while focusing on improving facilities and enhancing their
functions to ensure a high quality, safe education and research environment.

Improving advanced research environments
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Data 1 Budget for FY2020
(1) National Budget

(unit: billion yen)

National Debt Service:
23,351.5
(23.1%)

Others:
9,947.9
(9.9%) [16.1%]

Local Allocation Tax
Grants, etc.:
15,809.3
(15.7%)
Ministry Education, Culture,
Sports, Science and Technology:
5,306.0
(5.3%) [8.6%]

General Expenditure:
61,718.4
(61.2%) [100.0%]
Ministry of Health,
Labour and Welfare:
32,986.1
(32.7%) [53.4%]

Ministry of Agriculture,
Forestry and Fisheries: 2,137.0
(2.1%)[3.5%]
Ministry of Defense: 5,262.5
(5.2%) [8.5%]

* 1. ( ) Ratio in proportion to the nation's entire budget
2. [ ] Ratio in proportion to general expenditure
3. Excluding the amount of budget for temporary and special measures

Ministry of Land, Infrastructure,
Transport and Tourism: 6,078.8
(6.0%) [9.8%]

(2) Contents of MEXT General Budget
Management expenses for National Institute of
Technology: 62.3(1.2%)
National university corporation facility
expenses: 36.1(0.7%)[43.0]*5

(unit: billion yen)

Purchase of school textbooks: 46.0(0.9%)
Exchange student expenses: 35.3 (0.7%)
Sports-related expenses*4: 35.1 (0.6%)
Other education-related expenses (lifelong learning expenses, etc.):
143.9 (2.7%) [9.0]*5
Personnel expenses, etc.: 236.6 (4.5%)

Public school facility expenses:
69.5(1.3%)[47.0]*5
Scholarship programs:
102.0(1.9%)
Culture and arts expenses:
106.7(2.0%)

National treasury's
share of compulsory
education expenses:
1,522.1 (28.7%)
Science and
technology
promotion: 976.2
(18.4%)
[5.9] *5

Grants for private schools*4:
409.4 (7.7%) [4.3] *5

Classification
MEXT
General
Budget

5,306.0
(100%)
Tuition support
for high school
students: 448.7
(8.5%)
Management expenses
grants for national
university corporations:
1,080.7 (20.4%)

Budget for Budget for
Increase/Decrease
FY2019
FY2020
5,306.2*1

5,306.0*2*3

-0.2

[Budgets requested by other ministries and agencies]
Cabinet Office General Budget:
Part of the expenses for free early childhood education and care (341 billion
yen); Expenses for the new academic support system for higher education
(488.2 billion yen)
Japan Tourism Agency General Budget: Expenses for project to allocate funds from the international tourist tax
(9.8 billion yen)
*1
*2
*3
*4
*5
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The figure after re-budgeting due to the launch of free early childhood education and care
When including the budget transferred to the new Comprehensive Support System for Children and
Child-rearing, 5,307.2 billion yen (up by 1 billion yen from the previous year).
For temporary and special measures (relating to measures for disaster prevention/mitigation and national
resilience), 109.2 billion yen is separately recorded.
Grants for private schools and sports-related expenses include duplication.
For reference, the amounts for temporary and special measures are indicated in square parentheses as
figures not included.
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Data 2 Japanese School Systems
Age
School Year
Preschool
Education

Elementary School Education

Secondary School Education

Higher Education
Correspondence
Course

Secondary School
(Early Course) (Later Course)
Part-time Course-time
Correspondence
Course

University
(Faculties)

Graduate School
Professional Graduate
School

Integrated
Centers for
Early
Childhood
Education
and Care

＊

Professional and
Vocational University
Professional and
Vocational Junior
College

Elementary School

Lower
Secondary
School

Upper
Secondary
School

Junior
College

＊

＊

Correspondence
Course

Post-secondary
Course in
Specialized
Training College

＊

Kindergarten

Part-time Course

＊

Correspondence
Course

＊

College of Technology

Compulsory Education School

(Early Course)

Upper
Secondary
Course in
Specialized
Training
College

＊

(Later Course)
General Course in Specialized
Training College
Miscellaneous School

Kindergarten
Department

Elementary Department

Lower
Secondary
Department

Upper
Secondary
Department

School for Special
Needs Education

＊
Compulsory education
School Year

Age
(Notes)
(1) An asterisk (*) indicates advanced courses.
(2) Upper secondary schools, later courses of secondary schools, universities, junior colleges and upper secondary departments of schools for
special needs education may have an additional course running for at least one year.
(3) An integrated center for early childhood education and care is both a school and child welfare facility and admits children who are up to two
years old.
(4) The general courses at specialized training colleges and miscellaneous schools do not have standardized age or other qualification requirements for admission.
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Data 3 Composition of total public expenditure on education as a percentage of
total government expenditure (2017)
Direct public expenditure on
educational institutions

（％）
20

Public transfers and payments to the
non-educational private sector

Total public expenditure on education as a
percentage of total government expenditure

15

10

5

Colombia*1
Poland
Latvia
Lithuania
Germany
Slovenia
Russian Federation
Spain
France
Czech Republic
Slovak Republic
Japan
Hungary
Luxembourg
Italy
Greece

Canada*2
Belgium
OECD average
Estonia
Finland
Portugal
Austria
EU23 average

Costa Rica*1
Israel
Korea
Ireland
Denmark
Australia
Norway
United Kingdom
Argentina
United States
Turkey
Sweden
Netherlands

Chile
South Africa
Mexico
Brazil
Switzerland
New Zealand
Iceland

0

*1 Year of reference 2018.
*2 Primary education includes pre-primary
programmes.
Source) OECD "Education at a Glance 2020"

Data 4 Trends in Science and Technology Budget per Country Based on FY2000
as 100
(Indices; Comparison in respective countries' currencies)
1800

1600

Japan

United States

Germany

France

United
Kingdom

China

China (2018):
1,653.6

South Korea

1400
1200

1000

800

600

South Korea(2018): 526.7
Germany (2019): 206.3
United States (2019): 203.6
United Kingdom (2018): 180.1

400

200

Japan (2019): 135.5
France (2018): 100.8

0
2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

(FY)

(Notes)
(1) Values are calculated based on FY2000 Science and Technology Budgets in respective countries' currencies as 100.
(2) Japan changed the budget coverage in FY2001 in light of the formulation of the Science and Technology Basic Plan.
(3) Values for FY2019 for the United States and Germany are provisional.
(Sources) Japan: prepared by MEXT based on the data of the Cabinet Office
Other countries: prepared by MEXT based on the "Japanese Science and Technology Indicators 2020" of the National Institute
of Science and Technology Policy, MEXT
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Data 5 Number of Schools, Students and Teachers (As of May 1, 2019)
Number of Schools
10,070

Kindergartens
Integrated Centers for
Early Childhood
Education and Care

1,145,576

5,276

93,579

695,214

109,515

19,738

Elementary Schools
Lower Secondary
Schools

6,368,550

10,222

Compulsory
Education Schools

3,520

4,887

3,168,369

54

231,319

32,153

1,146

Colleges of
Technology

246,825

40,747

Upper Secondary
Schools

Schools for Special
Needs Education

421,935

3,218,137

94

Secondary Schools

Number of Full-Time
Teachers

Number of Students

2,642

144,434

85,336

57

57,124

4,169

Junior Colleges

326

113,013

7,440

Universities

786

Specialized Training
Colleges, Miscellaneous
Schools

2,918,668
4,256

187,862

776,613

49,925

*Additionally, there are correspondence schools for upper secondary schools, universities and junior colleges.
Sources: MEXT, School Basic Survey (FY2019)

Data 6 Transition of Population of 18-years-olds and percentages of entering higher education institutions
●

Population of 18-year-olds = Number of lower secondary school graduates and students completing early course for secondary school from three years ago
Entrance rate 1 = Number of university, junior college and post-secondary course in specialized training college entrants,
and students enrolled in the 4th year of colleges of technology
Population of 18-year-olds
● Entrance rate 2 = Number of university and junior college entrants for the fiscal year
Population of 18-year-olds
○
Number of upper secondary school graduates = Number of upper secondary school graduates and students completing later course of secondary school
249
○ Ratio of applicants enrolled in school = Number of upper secondary school graduates for the fiscal year
243
The population of 18-year-olds nearly leveled off between 2009 and 2020, but it is expected to
who submitted applications to universities or junior colleges
decrease again from around 2021 to reach as low as approximately 0.88 million in 2040.
Number of upper secondary school graduates for the fiscal year
236
○ Capacity = Number of university and junior college entrants for the fiscal year
(Only students who passed their entrance exams on the first try)
Capacity
Number of university and junior college applicants for the fiscal year
88.8%
University: 88.0%
(Only applicants still enrolled in school)
Junior college: 98.3%
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61.2%
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Junior college: 4.4%
Entrance rate 2
58.1%
University: 53.7%
Junior college: 4.4%
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Source: MEXT School Basic Survey
The data of FY2032-FY2040 is based on the National Institute of Population and Social Security Research, "Japan's future population estimate (FY2017)" (medium fertility / medium mortality).
* "Breakdown total" and "Total" enrollment rate in higher education, and ratio of applicants still enrolled in high school may differ in some cases due to rounding off to one decimal place.
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Introduction of Related Independent Administrative Institutions
Name

Website Address

National Institute for Educational Policy Research (NIER)

03 (6733) 6833

https://www.nier.go.jp/

National Institute of Science and Technology Policy (NISTEP)

03 (3581) 2391

https://www.nistep.go.jp/

National Institute for School Teachers and Staff Development (NITS)

029 (879) 6613

https://www.nits.go.jp/

National Institute of Special Needs Education (NISE)

046 (839) 6803

https://www.nise.go.jp/nc/

National Center for University Entrance Examinations

03 (3468) 3311

https://www.dnc.ac.jp/

Japan Student Services Organization (JASSO)

03 (6743) 6011

https://www.jasso.go.jp/

National Institute of Technology

042 (662) 3120

https://www.kosen-k.go.jp/

042 (307) 1500

https://www.niad.ac.jp/

Promotion and Mutual Aid Corporation for Private Schools of Japan

03 (3230) 1321

https://www.shigaku.go.jp/

National Museum of Nature and Science

03 (3822) 0111

https://www.kahaku.go.jp/

National Institution for Youth Education

03 (3467) 7201

https://www.niye.go.jp/

National Women’s Education Center of Japan (NWEC)

0493 (62) 6711

https://www.nwec.jp/

Japan Society for the Promotion of Science (JSPS)

03 (3263) 1722

https://www.jsps.go.jp/

Japan Science and Technology Agency (JST)

048 (226) 5601

https://www.jst.go.jp/

RIKEN (Institute of Physical and Chemical Research)

048 (462) 1111

https://www.riken.jp/

National Institute for Materials Science (NIMS)

029 (859) 2000

https://www.nims.go.jp/

043 (382) 8001

https://www.qst.go.jp/

Japan Agency for Medical Research and Development (AMED)

03 (6870) 2200

https://www.amed.go.jp/

National Research Institute for Earth Science and Disaster Resilience (NIED)

029 (851) 1611

http://www.bosai.go.jp/

Japan Agency for Marine-Earth Science and Technology (JAMSTEC)

046 (866) 3811

http://www.jamstec.go.jp/

Japan Aerospace Exploration Agency (JAXA)

03 (5289) 3650

http://www.jaxa.jp/

Japan Atomic Energy Agency (JAEA)

029 (282) 1122

https://www.jaea.go.jp/

Japan Sport Council (JSC)

03 (5410) 9124

https://www.jpnsport.go.jp/

Japan Arts Council

03 (3265) 7411

https://www.ntj.jac.go.jp/

National Museum of Art

03 (3214) 2561

http://www.artmuseums.go.jp/

National Institutes for Cultural Heritage

03 (3822) 1196

https://www.nich.go.jp/

National Institution for Academic Degrees and Quality Enhancement of
Higher Education (NIAD-QE)

National Institutes for Quantum and Radiological Science and
Technology (QST)
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Telephone Number

Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology

Map and Directory

Access:
■Toranomon Station Exit 11 2 min. walk
■Kasumigaseki Station Exit A13 5 min. walk
Ministry of Foreign
Affairs

[Central Government Building No.7 East Building]
32F
(Board of Audit of Japan)
￨
20F

Kasumigaseki Sta.

19F
Ministry of
Economy,
Trade and
Industry

18F Research and Development Bureau
Ministry of Finance

17F Research Promotion Bureau
16F National Institute of Science and Technology Policy (NISTEP)

Japan Post
Bldg.

15F Science and Technology Policy Bureau
14F Higher Education Bureau

MEXT

13F Higher Education Bureau, Japan Sports Agency
12F

Ministry of
Economy,
Trade and
Industry
(Annex)

Minister’s Secretariat (Management and Coordination Division, International Affairs Division), Director-General for International Affairs

11F Minister’s Secretariat (Management and Coordination Division)

Kasumigaseki
Common Gate

10F Minister’s Secretariat (Personnel Division, Policy Division)
Education Policy Bureau

8F

Elementary and Secondary Education Bureau

7F

Elementary and Secondary Education Bureau

6F

National Institute for Educational Policy Research

5F

National Institute for Educational Policy Research

Sotobori-dori

Sakurada-dori

9F

Toranomon Sta.

[The former MEXT Building]

4F

Minister’s Secretariat (Budget and Accounts Division)

6F

Agency for Cultural Affairs, Assembly hall

3F

Assembly hall

5F

Agency for Cultural Affairs

2F

Entrance

1

Canteen

4F

Department of Facilities Planning and Disaster Prevention

3F

The Museum of MEXT, Library

2F
1F

Lounge

MEXT
te
Websi )

MEXT
te
Websi e)
es

h

(Englis

(Japan

文部科学省 MEXT

（@mextjapan）

文部科学省 MEXT

（@mextjapan）

文部科学省 MEXT

（@mextjapan）

◆Today’ s Highlight

Daily photo and video updates on MEXT
activities (updated at any time)

◆The Monthly Journal of MEXT

MEXT’ s public relations magazine covering
important policies and the latest topics in education,
culture, sports, science and technology
(published monthly in e-book format)

A space dedicated to showcasing MEXT's diverse range
of activities, from the past and present, through various
exhibits and events.
Opening Hours: 10:00 -18:00
Closed:
Sunday, Saturday and holidays
Admission:
Free

The
Museum
of
MEXT
Minister's Office in 1933 (recreated as it existed in 1933)
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From MEXT
to
the NEXT

https://www.mext.go.jp/

MEXT is the acronym of “Ministry of Education, Culture, Sports, Science and Technology”
taken from its abbreviation MECSST.
MEXT MINISTRY OF EDUCATION, CULTURE, SPORTS, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY-JAPAN
3-2-2 Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8959, Japan TEL: +81-3-5253-4111
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